
 

 
 

STATE OF HAWAII 
 DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE 

OFFICE OF THE ADJUTANT GENERAL 
3949 DIAMOND HEAD ROAD 

HONOLULU, HAWAII 96816-4495 
 
 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

Refuse Collection and Disposal for Various Locations on Oahu 
State of Hawaii, Department of Defense, Hawaii Army National Guard 

Job No. CA-202112 
 
 

 The items listed hereinafter are hereby made a part of the contract for the above-
mentioned project and shall govern the work taking precedence over previously issued 
contract documents governing the items mentioned.  Receipt of this addendum is to be 
acknowledged on page OF-6 of the proposer’s packet. 
 

In keeping with Governor Ige’s emergency declaration regarding COVID-19, 
Department of Defense (DoD), Engineering Office is temporarily altering the process to 
be used for bid openings to adhere to the requirement to avoid unnecessary gatherings. 
 

Bids will not be opened in public.  After 2:00 PM,  bids will be opened by two 
DoD, Engineering Office personnel.  Following the bid opening, the bid tabulation will be 
posted on the DoD website, http://dod.hawaii.gov/hieng/.  Additionally, DoD  will email to 
each bidder PDF files providing scans of all pages for each of the three apparent lowest 
bids received.  This service is intended to replace the prior practice of permitting bidders 
to photograph competitors' bid packages. 
 
 
Below are the answers to the questions submitted prior to the due date of June 
17, 2021. 

1. In regards to the above Bid for Refuse Collection & Disposal for Various 
Locations on Oahu, Hawaii Army National Guard, are we required to bid on every 
location? 

. 
a. Yes. 
 

2. Can we use 2-4cy bins in place of 1-8cy bin? 
 

a. No. 
 

3. For the three 30 yd open tops, can you provide last year’s tonnages? 
 
a. Not applicable.  This solicitation does not include 30 yd open tops bins. 

 
 
 

http://dod.hawaii.gov/hieng/


 
 

 

4. You have wood separated, where is it currently being tipped/processed? 
 
a. Processing location is up to the contractor. 

 
5. In your campaign contributions, does it apply to personal contributions? 

 
a. No.  If awarded a contract in response to this solicitation, offeror agrees to 

comply with HRS §11-355, which states that campaign contributions are 
prohibited from a State and County government contractor during the term of 
the contract if the contractor is paid with funds appropriated by the legislative 
body between the execution of the contract through the completion of the 
contract. 

 
6. Requirement for contractors licensing classification: Our business license with 

the City & County of Honolulu is for Garbage and or Rubbish collection, will that 
suffice? 
 
a. Yes. 

 
7. Pg. SN1: Special Notice to Bidders: What is your “Standard Questionnaire and 

financial Statement for Bidders”, and does it apply to this bid? 
 
a. No. 

 
8. Pg. AGC-5: Price Adjustments for Goods and Services:  Is there a provision if the 

landfill increases their rates? 
 

a. No.  However, rates can be adjusted annually, and increases can be 
negotiated at those times. 

 
9. Scope of Work: As discussed in the pre-bid, true tonnage reports are not 

possible because the trash is commingled with other trash. 6cy’s do not need 
wheels and lockable spring-loaded hinge tops are not required. Can this be 
deleted from the bid? 

 
a. Not applicable for this solicitation.     

 
10. What is the current pricing? 

 
a. Submit a request to access government record by filling up the Office of 

Information Practices (OPI) forms at https://oip.hawaii.gov/forms/. 
 

11. What were the last bid results? 
 

a. Below is the link to view the bid results for the last Hawaii Army National 
Guard (HIARNG) Refuse and Disposal Services solicitation.  
   

https://oip.hawaii.gov/forms/


 
 

 

Department of Defense Engineering Office | CA-1607 Refuse Collection and 
Disposal for Various Locations on Oahu, State of Hawaii, Department of 
Defense, Hawaii Army National Guard 

 
12. What happens if City and County / Covanta increases their disposal rates?  Are 

we allowed to pass thru the incremental price adjustment? 
 

a. Not during contract duration.  However, rates may be adjusted annually, and 
increases can be negotiated at those times.  Any cost change shall be 
processed as a supplement to the contract.   

 
13. As Hawaii Air National Guard (HIANG) and Hawaii Army National Guard 

(HIARNG) are both from the Department of Defense and the scope of work for 
the refuse collection services are very similar in nature to each other, can both 
the HIAING Job No. CA202114 and HIARNG Job No. CA-202112 Refuse 
Collection Services Bids be due on the same date?  As it stands now bidders 
may adjust their HIARNG bid prices up or down based upon the bid results from 
the HIANG bid opening, which is two days earlier on 7/6/21. 

 
a. The bid opening date for the Hawaii Air National Guard (HIANG), Job No. CA-

202114 has been changed.  Bid opening is scheduled for July 8, 2021 at 2:00 
PM for both HIANG Job No. CA-202114 and Hawaii Army National Guard 
(HIARNG) Job No. CA-202112.   

 
 
 
 
Stephen F. Logan 
Brigadier General 
Acting Adjutant General  
Posted: June 25, 2021 
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